
 

                      

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA            

March 1, 2011 

6:30 P.M. 

 
6:30 PM BUSINESS MEETING 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Roll Call    

 

Electronic Attendance  

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

 

Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted 

by one motion. No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member 

requests the item to be removed from the Consent Agenda. If an item is removed from the 

Consent Agenda, it will be considered elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.  Prior to 

asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the Acting Mayor will ask if anyone 

desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public discussion. 

 

Minutes of the Rescheduled meeting February 22, 2011 

 

Bills and payroll for the last half of February, 2011.  

 
PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the 

Council. The Illinois Open Meetings Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action 

on comments received on matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council 

may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for action on the agenda for another 

meeting. Persons addressing the Council are requested to limit their presentations to three 

minutes and to avoid repetitious comments; and state your name for the record as well as 

stand when speaking. 

 

• Public comments/presentations and non-agenda items 

      

� Open bids for the sale of surplus property located at 32
nd

 Street & Cedar Avenue, 

formerly known as the Garment Factory. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2011-1184 Authorizing the Acting Mayor to 

sign the Intergovernmental Agreement for Governmental Body Maintenance of 

Traffic Control Devices between the City of Mattoon and Illinois Department of 

Transportation. (Ervin) 

 

2. Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2011-1427: Declaring surplus real estate; and 

authorizing the sale of the property to Broadway Christian Church. (Rankin) 



 

                      

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 

 

 CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 ATTORNEY & TREASURER 

 CITY CLERK 

 PUBLIC WORKS 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 FIRE 

 POLICE 

 

COMMENTS BY THE COUNCIL 

 

 Adjourn 



 

                      

UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
February 22, 2011 (Rescheduled) 
 
 The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a rescheduled meeting in the City Hall 
Council Chambers on February 22, 2011.  
 
 Acting Mayor Gover presided and called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call physically present: YEA 
Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner Rick Hall, YEA Commissioner Chris Rankin, 
YEA Acting Mayor Tim Gover. 
 
 Also physically present were City personnel:  City Administrator Sue McLaughlin, 
Attorney & Treasurer J. Preston Owen, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, Public 
Works Director Dean Barber, Police Chief Jeff Branson, and City Clerk Susan O’Brien. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to approve the consent 
agenda consisting of minutes of the regular meeting January 18, 2011; Fire Department Report 
for January 2011 and Finance Reports for the month of January; bills and payroll for the last half 
of January 2011 and first half of February, 2011. 
 

  Bills and Payroll for the last half of January, 2011 

        
  General Fund      
Payroll         $      229,674.26  

Bills         $        30,722.50  

      Total   $      260,396.76  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         1,666.65  

Bills         $            413.02  
      Total   $         2,079.67  
  Festival Management     

Bills        $         1,601.02  
      Total  $         1,601.02  

  
Insurance & Tort 

Judgment    

Bills         $        40,312.46  
      Total  $        40,312.46  

  Capital Project Fund    

Bills         $      467,879.16  
      Total  $      467,879.16  
  Water Fund     
Payroll         $        27,308.61  

Bills         $        41,571.40  
      Total   $        68,880.01  

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        26,973.55  



 

                      

Bills         $        32,186.53  

      Total   $        59,160.08  
  Motor Fuel Tax Fund    

Bills         $         6,671.39  
      Total  $         6,671.39  
  Health Insurance      

Bills         $      103,974.17  
      Total   $      103,974.17  

 
 

  Bills and Payroll for the first half of February, 2011 

        
  General Fund      
Payroll         $      228,041.33  

Bills         $      378,124.77  

      Total   $      606,166.10  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         1,666.65  

Bills         $         2,892.73  
      Total   $         4,559.38  

  
Insurance & Tort 

Judgment    

Bills         $        43,114.72  
      Total  $        43,114.72  

  Capital Project Fund    

Bills         $      119,069.08  
      Total  $      119,069.08  
  Water Fund     
Payroll         $        30,720.13  

Bills         $        57,307.64  
      Total   $        88,027.77  

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        30,497.31  

Bills         $        64,554.81  

      Total   $        95,052.12  
  Motor Fuel Tax Fund    

Bills         $        29,184.65  
      Total  $        29,184.65  
  Health Insurance      

Bills         $      141,158.57  
      Total   $      141,158.57  

 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the 
following vote: YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner 
Rankin, YEA Acting Mayor Gover. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS/PRESENTATION AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS: 

 



 

                      

 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for public discussion.   
 
 Ms. Joyce St. Michael inquired about the water odor, and extended appreciation to the 
Public Works Department for their efforts in snow removal and limb pickup.  Director Barber 
addressed the water issue by stating a drawing of Lake Mattoon and with the ice melting and 
runoff caused high turbidity water. 
 
 Mr. Justin Grady, Vice Chairman of Mattoon Arts Council, provided highlights of last 
years’ Arts Council projects and described major interactions with other organizations to bring 
the arts to Mattoon.  Council inquired as to the second mural project with Mr. Grady elaborating 
on the second mural project; and expressed appreciation of the work of the Arts Council. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for additional public questions or comments with 
no responders. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner Rankin moved to adopt Resolution 
2011-2831, appropriating $634,000 of Motor Fuel Tax funds for the 2011 Street Maintenance 
use. [11-0000-00-GM]  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

RESOLUTION 2011-2831  
Resolution for Maintenance of 
Streets and Highways by Municipality 

Under the Illinois Highway Code 

 
     BE IT RESOLVED, by Council of the 
 (Council or President  and Board of Trustees) 
City  of Mattoon , Illinois, that there is hereby 

(City, Town or Village)  (Name)  
appropriated the sum $634,000.00 of Motor Fuel Tax funds for the purpose of maintaining 
 
streets and highways under the applicable provisions of the Illinois Highway January 1, 2011  
                                                                                                                                                                                     
to  December 31, 2011 . 
 (Date)  
 

     BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that only those streets, highways, and operations as listed 
and described on the approved Municipal Estimate of Maintenance Costs, including 
supplemental or revised estimates approved in connection with this resolution, are eligible for 
maintenance with Motor Fuel Tax funds during the period as specified above. 
 
     BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk shall, as soon a practicable after the close of 
the period as given above, submit to the Department of Transportation, on forms furnished by 
said Department , a certified statement showing expenditures from and balances remaining in the 
account(s) for this period; and 
 
     BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk shall immediately transmit two certified copies 
of this 
resolution to the district office of the Department of Effingham , Illinois. 

 

 



 

                      

I,  Susan J, OBrien Clerk in and for City 
   (City, Town or 
of Mattoon , County of  Coles 
 
hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted by  
 
the Council at a meeting 

on  
February 22, 2011 

 (Council or President and Board of Trustees)  Date 
    
 
     IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 
seal this 

23rd day of  February, 2011 . 

     
 
 
(SEAL) /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  City of Mattoon  Clerk 

   (City, Town or  
 

 Authorized MFT  
   
   
 Date  
 Department of Transportation  
   
   
 Regional Engineer  

 

 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner Rankin moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2011-1183, approving the appropriation of $633,078 in motor fuel tax funds 
for street maintenance use for the calendar year 2011; and authorizing the Acting Mayor to sign 
the document. [11-0000-00-GM]  
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Resolution 2011-
2832, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the 4th of July parade to be 
sponsored by the City of Mattoon.  
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2832 

 



 

                      

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is sponsoring a Parade in the City of Mattoon which 
event constitutes a public purpose; 

 
 WHEREAS, this Parade will require the temporary closure of US 45 / IL 121, a State 
Highway in the City of Mattoon from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code Authorizes the Illinois 
Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions 
of State Highways for such public purposes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Mattoon that 
permission to close off US 45 / IL 121 from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue as above 
designated, be requested of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time 
period between 9:00 AM and 10:30 AM on July 4th, 2011. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the July 4th 
Parade. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be 
detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will 
be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the 
benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited 
on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)*  The detour shall be as 
follows:  The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to 
Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to 
traffic as required. 
*To be used when appropriate. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon assumes full responsibility for 
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the 
expense of the City of Mattoon be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points 
(such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit 
emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe 
for all concerned. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the City of Mattoon 
prior to reopening the State Highway. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by 
the City of Mattoon as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation.  These 
items shall be provided by the City of Mattoon. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according 
to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession 



 

                      

so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on 
intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable 
when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon hereby agrees to assume all 
liabilities and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by the closing described 
above.  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon shall provide a comprehensive 
general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement  in the amount of $100,000 per 
person and $500,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its 
officials, employees and agents as insured’s and which protects them from all claims arising 
from the requested road closing. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Illinois 
Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this 
resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission. 

 
PRESENTED this 22nd day of February, 2011. A.D. 
APPROVED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
ADOPTED this 22nd day of February, 2011. A.D. 
 
       /s/ Timothy D. Gover 
       ACTING MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
/s Susan J. O’Brien 
MUNICIPAL CLERK 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Rankin moved to adopt Resolution 2011-
2833, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the Bagelfest parade to be 
sponsored by the City of Mattoon.  
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2833 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is sponsoring a Parade in the City of Mattoon which 
event constitutes a public purpose; 

 
 WHEREAS, this Parade will require the temporary closure of US 45 / IL 121, a State 
Highway in the City of Mattoon from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code Authorizes the Illinois 
Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions 



 

                      

of State Highways for such public purposes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Mattoon that 
permission to close off US 45 / IL 121 from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue as above 
designated, be requested of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time 
period between 10:30 AM and 11:30 AM on July 23rd, 2011. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the Bagelfest 
Parade. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be 
detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will 
be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the 
benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited 
on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)*  The detour shall be as 
follows:  The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to 
Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to 
traffic as required. 
*To be used when appropriate. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon assumes full responsibility for 
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the 
expense of the City of Mattoon be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points 
(such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit 
emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe 
for all concerned. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the City of Mattoon 
prior to reopening the State Highway. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by 
the City of Mattoon as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation.  These 
items shall be provided by the City of Mattoon. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according 
to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession 
so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on 
intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable 
when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon hereby agrees to assume all 
liabilities and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by the closing described 
above.  
 



 

                      

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon shall provide a comprehensive 
general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement  in the amount of $100,000 per 
person and $500,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its 
officials, employees and agents as insured’s and which protects them from all claims arising 
from the requested road closing. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Illinois 
Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this 
resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission. 

 
PRESENTED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
APPROVED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
ADOPTED this 22nd day of February, 2011. A.D. 
 
 
        /s/ Timothy D. Gover 
        ACTING MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
MUNICIPAL CLERK 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Resolution 2011-
2834, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the Veterans Day parade to be 
sponsored by the City of Mattoon.  
 

 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2834 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is sponsoring a Parade in the City of Mattoon which 
event constitutes a public purpose; 

 
 WHEREAS, this Parade will require the temporary closure of US 45 / IL 121, a State 
Highway in the City of Mattoon from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code Authorizes the Illinois 
Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions 
of State Highways for such public purposes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Mattoon that 
permission to close off US 45 / IL 121 from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue as above 
designated, be requested of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 
 



 

                      

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time 
period between 10:00 AM and 11:00 AM on November 11, 2011. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the Veterans 
Day Parade. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be 
detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will 
be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the 
benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited 
on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)*  The detour shall be as 
follows:  The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to 
Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to 
traffic as required. 
*To be used when appropriate. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon assumes full responsibility for 
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the 
expense of the City of Mattoon be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points 
(such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit 
emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe 
for all concerned. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the City of Mattoon 
prior to reopening the State Highway. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by 
the City of Mattoon as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation.  These 
items shall be provided by the City of Mattoon. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according 
to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession 
so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on 
intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable 
when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon hereby agrees to assume all 
liabilities and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by the closing described 
above.  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon shall provide a comprehensive 
general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement  in the amount of $100,000 per 
person and $500,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its 
officials, employees and agents as insured’s and which protects them from all claims arising 
from the requested road closing. 
 



 

                      

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Illinois 
Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this 
resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission. 

 
PRESENTED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
APPROVED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
ADOPTED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
 

        /s/ Timothy D. Gover 
        ACTING MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien 
MUNICIPAL CLERK 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Rankin moved to adopt Resolution 2011-
2835, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the Holiday parade to be 
sponsored by the City of Mattoon.  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2835 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is sponsoring a Parade in the City of Mattoon which 
event constitutes a public purpose; 

 
 WHEREAS, this Parade will require the temporary closure of US 45 / IL 121, a State 
Highway in the City of Mattoon from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code Authorizes the Illinois 
Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions 
of State Highways for such public purposes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Mattoon that 
permission to close off US 45 / IL 121 from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue as above 
designated, be requested of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time 
period between 1:00 PM and 2:00 PM on November 19th, 2011. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the Holiday 
Parade. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be 



 

                      

detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will 
be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the 
benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited 
on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)*  The detour shall be as 
follows:  The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to 
Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to 
traffic as required. 
*To be used when appropriate. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon assumes full responsibility for 
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the 
expense of the City of Mattoon be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points 
(such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit 
emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe 
for all concerned. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the City of Mattoon 
prior to reopening the State Highway. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by 
the City of Mattoon as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation.  These 
items shall be provided by the City of Mattoon. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according 
to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession 
so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on 
intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable 
when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon hereby agrees to assume all 
liabilities and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by the closing described 
above.  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon shall provide a comprehensive 
general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement  in the amount of $100,000 per 
person and $500,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its 
officials, employees and agents as insured’s and which protects them from all claims arising 
from the requested road closing. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Illinois 
Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this 
resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission. 

 
PRESENTED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
APPROVED this 22nd day of February, 2011 A.D. 
ADOPTED this 22nd day of February, 2011. A.D. 



 

                      

 
 
        /s/ Timothy D. Gover 
        ACTING MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
MUNICIPAL CLERK 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 Acting Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Special 
Ordinance 2011-1426, approving the Subdivision Plat of R & L’s Subdivision in the City of 
Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois.   
 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2011-1426  

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SUBDIVISION PLAT OF R & L’s SUBDIVISION 

IN THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINIOS. 

 
WHEREAS, a request to approve the subdivision plat of R & L’s Subdivision has 
been present to the City of Mattoon, on behalf of the owner of said real estate; 

 
WHEREAS, the owner of the real estate believes it would be beneficial to the public, for the 
subdivision plat to be approved and recorded; 
  
WHEREAS, the plat is subdividing a lot into two lots. 
  
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has 
recommended that said final plat be approved at the January 25, 2011 meeting. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to enabling authority provided at Section §159.05 of the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances, the Plat of R & L’s Subdivision be approved. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 



 

                      

Upon motion by Acting Mayor Gover, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 22nd day 
of February, 2011, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall 
   Commissioner Rankin, Acting Mayor Gover    
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 22nd day of February, 2011.  

/s/ Timothy D. Gover 
       Tim Gover, Acting Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk               J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on March 1, 2011.  
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 Acting Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to adopt Ordinance 2011-
5315, setting the fees charged by the Mattoon Police Department. 
 

 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2011-5315 

AN ORDINANCE SETTING FEES CHARGED BY THE POLICE 

DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon desires to change various fees now contained in the Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon as 
follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  Chapter 35.01 (B) of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances is amended by repealing all of 
said Chapter and adopting in lieu thereof a new Chapter 35.01 (B) as shown below.  If the fees 
listed below are in conflict with the same fees now contained in the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances, the fees listed below shall have precedence. 
 



 

                      

§35.01  Fees and Charges 

(B) Police 

(1) Vehicle Impound Fee $250.00 $50.00 (Driving with a suspended or revoked 

license, driving under the influence (DUI), or a vehicle used in a felony. 

  (2) Accident Reports 
   Standard Accident Report      $5.00 
   VHS/CD reproduction     $20.00 
 
  (3) Bonding Fees (all)      $20.00 

  (4) Criminal Records 

   Offense Reports (1 or 2 pages)    $2.00 
   Each Additional Page      $1.00 
   Access & Review Charge (fingerprints required)  $10.00 
 
  (5) Faxes 
   First Page       $2.00 
   Each Additional Page      $1.00 
 
  (6) Photocopying (per page)     $0.75 
 
  (7) Photos 

   5” x 7” Black & White     $3.50 
   8” x 10” Black & White     $5.00 
   Compact Disc (each)      $5.00 
 
 (8) Sex Offender Registration 
   Initial Registration      $100.00 
   Annually thereafter      $100.00 
 
 (9) Fingerprint Cards/Backgrounds     $10.00  
     
   (10) Tow Service Rotation Fee      $250.00 
   
   (11) Parking Fines 

  If paid within 72 hours     $20.00 
  If paid after 72 hours      $25.00 

 
Section 3.  All prior ordinances, resolutions and orders or parts of ordinances, resolutions and 
orders in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be effective upon the day of its adoption and approval by the City 
Council. The Clerk is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 
 



 

                      

Upon motion by Acting Mayor Gover, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 22nd day 
of February, 2011, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 

AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall  
   Commissioner Rankin, Acting Mayor Gover  
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 22nd day of February, 2011. 
       /s/ Timothy D. Gover 
       Timothy D. Gover, Acting Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk     J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on March 1, 2011. 

 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 

 

 CITY ADMINISTRATOR – updated Council on budgets, union negotiations, 
presentation of budget in mid-March, review of Public Works projects, and attendance at the 
upcoming ILCMA winter conference.  Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with 
no responders. 
 
 ATTORNEY & TREASURER – updated the Council on budgets and the State’s arrears 
of $467,000.  Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no responders. 
 
 CITY CLERK - stated business as usual in addition to including budgeting.  Acting 
Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no responders. 
 
 PUBLIC WORKS – updated the Council on numerous construction projects; and 
answered questions regarding the bids from the South Side Drainage Project. 
 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT – updated the Council on increased construction, 
YMCA new addition, foundation permit to United Graphics, and new top ten for next meeting.  
Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no responders. 
 
 FIRE – Chief Nichols was absent due to training. 
 
 POLICE – updated the Council on submitting a $20,000 squad car grant, and officers 
providing outstanding work on nuisances.  Commissioner Ervin acknowledged the Department’s 
performance on recent armed robberies and burglaries.  
 
COMMENTS BY THE COUNCIL 



 

                      

 
 Commissioner Ervin – nothing at this time 
 
 Commissioner Hall - nothing at this time 
 
 Commissioner Rankin - nothing at this time 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover – thanked the public for their attendance, and opened the floor for 
any questions with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to recess to closed session 
at 6:52 p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of discussing the sale or 
lease of property (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(6)); the purchase or lease of real property (5 ILCS 
120(2)(c)(5)); and collective bargaining negotiating matters (5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2)).  
 
 Acting Mayor Gover opened the floor for discussion with no responders. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover noted the adjournment following closed session. 
 
 Council reconvened at 7:18 p.m. 
 
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner Rankin moved to adjourned at 7:19 
p.m. 
 
 Acting Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Acting 
Mayor Gover.  
 
 
         /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
                        City Clerk  



 

                      

BILLS & PAYROLL: 

 
BEGIN ON NEXT PAGE 



CITY OF MATTOON

2-18-11 PAYROLL

1-29-11/2-11-11

G/L ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,199.99$      

CITY CLERK 110 5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,022.27$      

110 5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 424.87$         

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,906.24$      

110 5130-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 922.60$         

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,188.49$      

110 5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 31.23$           

LEGAL SERVICES 110 5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,335.06$      

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,097.64$      

110 5170-114 COMPENSATED ABSCENSES 244.82$         

PLANNING & ZONING 110 5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 775.21$         

110 5180-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 193.80$         

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 8,446.68$      

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 8,416.38$      

110 5212-113 OVERTIME 592.01$         

PATROL 110 5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 60,419.82$    

110 5213-113 OVERTIME 1,466.28$      

K-9 SERVICE 110 5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,966.72$      

110 5214-113 OVERTIME 54.96$           

POLICE RECORDS 110 5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,165.38$      

TRAFFIC CONTROL 110 5220-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 340.00$         

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,053.47$      

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 70,012.06$    

110 5241-113 OVERTIME 5,555.76$      

110 5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 3,968.74$      

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN 110 5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,131.42$      

110 5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 213.86$         

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,324.00$      

110 5310-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 69.21$           

STREETS 110 5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 24,788.22$    

110 5320-113 OVERTIME 7,997.34$      

110 5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 419.93$         

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 110 5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,135.59$      

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,761.34$      

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110 5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,737.30$      

110 5390-113 OVERTIME 586.73$         

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,341.23$      

110 5511-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 66.23$           

LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,022.34$      

110 5570-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,729.56$      

CEMETERY 110 5570-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 144.51$         

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 246,269.29$  

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION 122 5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,666.65$      

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 1,666.65$      



CITY OF MATTOON

2-18-11 PAYROLL

1-29-11/2-11-11

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 10,317.11$    

211 5353-113 OVERTIME 532.05$         

211 5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 374.65$         

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,881.71$      

211 5354-113 OVERTIME 1,037.18$      

211 5354-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 69.20$           

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 211 5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,481.88$      

211 5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 270.97$         

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,726.60$      

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 22,691.35$    

SANITARY SEWER MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,274.34$      

212 5342-113 OVERTIME 1,011.37$      

212 5342-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 654.76$         

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 212 5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,629.95$    

212 5344-113 OVERTIME 549.47$         

212 5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,082.34$      

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 212 5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,481.91$      

212 5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 271.00$         

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,726.60$      

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 27,681.74$    

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 298,309.03$  



CITY OF MATTOON

2-18-11 PAYROLL

1-29-11/2-11-11

PAY CODE NO OF TIMES              HOURS AMOUNT

REGULAR PAY 23 1,468.00 34,385.02$    

OVERTIME PAY 39 565.83 19,014.58$    

SALARY PAY 121 10,086.87 233,392.99$  

HOLIDAY PAY-REGULAR 33 130.7 2,873.70$      

PEHP 33 33 412.50$         

COMP EARNED 6 85.51 -$              

SICK PAY-AFSCME 10 60 1,284.74$      

SICK-FD UNION 3 72 1,494.00$      

SICK-NON UNION 9 73.5 2,281.85$      

SHIFT PAY 5 272 163.20$         

SHIFT PAY 3 160 112.00$         

COMP PAID 4 33 796.91$         

VACATION PAY 9 73.5 1,488.43$      

BACK PAY 1 1 102.08$         

STRAIGHT OT POLICE 3 15 368.57$         

VEHICLE EXP 1 1 138.46$         



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 120  CITY CLERK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       110 5120-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017           1.32

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       110 5120-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017         344.99

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS            346.31

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 120   CITY CLERK               TOTAL:         346.31

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-201102235834       110 5150-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      106010          14.93

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-004395  TOTALS             14.93

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:          14.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002401 SMITHAMUNDSEN          I-358306             110 5160-515        LABOR RELATIO: LEGAL SERVICES       106014       7,871.85

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002401  TOTALS          7,871.85

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       110 5160-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017           1.32

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS              1.32

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 160   LEGAL SERVICES           TOTAL:       7,873.17

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-4630               110 5180-511        PLANNING & DE: DECEMBER 10 TA BILLI 105996         270.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008200  TOTALS            270.00

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       110 5180-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017          13.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS             13.20

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 180   PLANNING & ZONING        TOTAL:         283.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002616 DAKOTA ST. JOHN        I-201102255869       110 5212-579        MISC OTHER PU: COMPLIANCE ASSISTANT 106025          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002616  TOTALS             50.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 212   CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION   TOTAL:          50.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 223  AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001487 AUTOZONE, INC.         I-0637851351         110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE,DE-ICER   105989          29.47

01-001487 AUTOZONE, INC.         I-0637862208         110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CAR WASH,WINDSHIELD  105989           9.56

01-001487 AUTOZONE, INC.         I-0637872240         110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WASH BRUSH,INTERIOR  105989          18.37

01-001487 AUTOZONE, INC.         I-0637888454         110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: WIPER BLADES         105989          15.98

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001487  TOTALS             73.38

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 223   AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES      TOTAL:          73.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102165807       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 S 17TH           000000          39.24

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102165808       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1710 WABASH          000000         240.99

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS            280.23

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 224   POLICE BUILDINGS         TOTAL:         280.23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102235853       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1801 PRAIRIE         105988         333.17

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            333.17

 

01-001395 CITY OF CHARLESTON     I-2011-00000001      110 5241-578        AMBULANCE BIL: AMBULANCE BILLING    105994         625.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001395  TOTALS            625.00

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS, I I-93528              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BATTERIES            105990          22.25

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002958  TOTALS             22.25

 

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-201102235835       110 5241-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              106010           4.95

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-201102235839       110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: 2 RELAYS             106010          29.87

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-004395  TOTALS             34.82

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B35542             110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: STRAP,SAND TUBE      106001          45.97

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B44737             110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: DE-ICER,SNOW BRUSH,H 106001          35.96

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS             81.93

 



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-97365              110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   106003          80.00

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-97370              110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   106003          31.50

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-97372              110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   106003          40.00

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-97577              110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   106003          10.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017000  TOTALS            162.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201102235852       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2448             105998          38.80

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS             38.80

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       110 5241-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017           4.30

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS              4.30

 

01-036080 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SE I-00217838SNV        110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BOOTS                106008         297.62

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-036080  TOTALS            297.62

 

01-039423 QUARTERMASTER INC      I-P663346700015      110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: TROUSERS             106012         107.95

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039423  TOTALS            107.95

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S3153867.001       110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: BULBS                106015          48.60

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043371  TOTALS             48.60

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-02055              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: DISH SOAP,CAR WASH,B 106019         147.31

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-05256              110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: MEDICAL SUPPLIES     106019           6.79

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045820  TOTALS            154.10

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 241   FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.   TOTAL:       1,910.54

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-201102235838       110 5261-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             106010           9.85

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-004395  TOTALS              9.85

 



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 261  CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201102235828       110 5261-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-7367             105998         239.31

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            239.31

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       110 5261-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017          27.53

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS             27.53

 

01-039210 VEOLIA ES SOLID WASTE  I-F50000237728       110 5261-577        DEMOLITION SE: TRASH SERVICES       105946         287.89

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039210  TOTALS            287.89

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 261   CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN   TOTAL:         564.58

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    C-78524              110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: RETURNS              105945          19.99-

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-78525              110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      105945          35.48

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-79757              110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      105945         440.50

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-80054              110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      105945          46.47

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-83978              110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      105945          27.28

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS            529.74

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 310   PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN       TOTAL:         529.74

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001026 PARIS MACHINE & WELDIN I-5260               110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SNOW SHIELD,CURB BUM 106009         413.63

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001026  TOTALS            413.63

 

01-001199 CARTER WATERS          I-30000456           110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: BLADES               105992         332.96

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001199  TOTALS            332.96

 

01-001345 J.B.'S WINDSHIELD REPA I-26103              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: 96 DUMP TRUCK        106004          45.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001345  TOTALS             45.00

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25177             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: HORN                 105991          39.11



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25214             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LIGHT ASSEMBLY,BULB  105991          40.93

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25239             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: HORN                 105991          39.11

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25450             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: CONNECTORS           105991           6.08

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25456             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: BIRKEYS              105991           5.30

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25815             110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: AIR FILTERS,BULBS    105991          45.58

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS            176.11

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT85846         110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: FASTENAL COMPANY     106002          94.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016140  TOTALS             94.50

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       110 5320-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017          46.64

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS             46.64

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095753       110 5320-410        UTILITY SERVI: 212 N 12TH           000000          22.55

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095754       110 5320-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 N 12TH           000000          59.81

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             82.36

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    C-79783              110 5320-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      106016          11.99-

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-24807              110 5320-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      106016          24.57

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-79782              110 5320-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      106016          27.99

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS             40.57

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 320   STREETS                  TOTAL:       1,231.77

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002086 ROY OVERTON TRUCKING   I-2133               110 5335-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MOVE CHIPPER         106013         475.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002086  TOTALS            475.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102165804       110 5335-410        UTILITY SERVI: 420 LOGAN            000000          26.02

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             26.02

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 335   YARD WASTE COLLECTION    TOTAL:         501.02

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 383  BURGESS OSBORNE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095705       110 5383-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1701 WABASH          000000          26.28

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             26.28

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 383   BURGESS OSBORNE          TOTAL:          26.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201102235829       110 5384-460        OTHER PROP MA: 235-5622             105998         112.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            112.24

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 384   RAILROAD DEPOT           TOTAL:         112.24

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002609 ROCKY MAFFIT           I-201102095721       110 5505-579        MISC OTHER PU: MUSIC ASSEMBLY       105944         650.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002609  TOTALS            650.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 505   ARTS COUNCIL             TOTAL:         650.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001486 MEADOWVIEW GOLF COURSE I-100                110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TRIPLEX MOWER CUTTIN 106006       1,270.52

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001486  TOTALS          1,270.52

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-E00369             110 5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: JOHN DEERE REEL MOWE 105991       4,800.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS          4,800.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 511   PARK ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:       6,070.52

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095701       110 5521-410        UTILITY SERVI: 418 RICHMOND         000000          34.76

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             34.76

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 521   DEMARS CENTER            TOTAL:          34.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095702       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY           000000          13.66



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 541  PETERSON PARK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095703       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY           000000          12.05

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095704       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 305 RICHMOND         000000          13.66

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095706       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY SHED      000000          13.66

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095707       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 307 RICHMOND         000000          13.66

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201102095708       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 301 RICHMOND         000000          13.90

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             80.59

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 541   PETERSON PARK            TOTAL:          80.59

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B29748             110 5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT SUPPLIES       105949          21.88

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS             21.88

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 542   LAWSON PARK              TOTAL:          21.88

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102245866       110 5551-321        NATURAL GAS &: 312 N 10TH           105988          37.68

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             37.68

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 551   BOYS COMPLEX             TOTAL:          37.68

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102245864       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            105988          35.69

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102245865       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            105988          17.80

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             53.49

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 552   GIRLS COMPLEX            TOTAL:          53.49

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102245868       110 5553-321        NATURAL GAS &: 421 SHELBY           105988         155.39

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            155.39

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 553   JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX      TOTAL:         155.39

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102245867       110 5556-321        NATURAL GAS &: 221 SHELBY           105988          30.68

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             30.68

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 556   T-BALL COMPLEX           TOTAL:          30.68

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 562  WEST CAMPGROUND

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B21347             110 5562-313        MEDICAL & SAF: RUBBER SHOES         105949          33.98

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS             33.98

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 562   WEST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:          33.98

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-24489              110 5563-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      105945         213.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS            213.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 563   MARINA AREA              TOTAL:         213.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102185826       110 5570-321        UTILITIES    : 917 N 22ND           105942         311.90

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201102185827       110 5570-321        UTILITIES    : 917 N 22ND           105942          30.42

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            342.32

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 570   DODGE GROVE CEMETERY     TOTAL:         342.32

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:      21,522.18



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 122  HOTEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 653  HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-201102235836       122 5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TAXI 1/26-29         106010          38.00

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-201102235837       122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : MEETING 2/17/11      106010          20.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-004395  TOTALS             58.00

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       122 5653-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017           9.55

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS              9.55

 

01-046900 WEST & COMPANY LLC     I-161880             122 5653-513        AUDITING SERV: AUDITING SERVICES    106020       1,100.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-046900  TOTALS          1,100.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 653   HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:       1,167.55

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 122   HOTEL TAX FUND           TOTAL:       1,167.55



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 586  LIGHTWORKS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       123 5586-319        MISCELLANEOUS: REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017           1.76

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS              1.76

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 586   LIGHTWORKS               TOTAL:           1.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 123   FESTIVAL MGMT FUND       TOTAL:           1.76



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 128  MIDTOWN TIF FUND

DEPARTMENT: 604  MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-046900 WEST & COMPANY LLC     I-161880             128 5604-513        AUDITING SERV: AUDITING SERVICES    106020       1,100.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-046900  TOTALS          1,100.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 604   MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT     TOTAL:       1,100.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 128   MIDTOWN TIF FUND         TOTAL:       1,100.00



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 353  WATER TREATMENT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-010000 CRAWFORD MURPHY & TILL I-88187              211 5353-730        IMPROVEMENTS : L PARADISE RAW WATER 106000       1,758.63

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-010000  TOTALS          1,758.63

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B40756             211 5353-312        CLEANING SUPP: COFFEE,VALVE SWITCH  105943           1.29

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B40756             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : COFFEE,VALVE SWITCH  105943          12.47

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B41285             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : GREASE,HASP          105943           6.57

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B47292             211 5353-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FUSE,RAIN-X,ANTIFREE 105943          22.04

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS             42.37

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 353   WATER TREATMENT PLANT    TOTAL:       1,801.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001199 CARTER WATERS          I-30000456           211 5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BLADES               105992         332.96

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001199  TOTALS            332.96

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25173             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: FLASHER              105991          37.48

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25214             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LIGHT ASSEMBLY,BULB  105991          40.93

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25400             211 5354-440        RENTALS      : OKADA TOP            105991         225.00

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25815             211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: AIR FILTERS,BULBS    105991          45.58

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS            348.99

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 354   WATER DISTRIBUTION       TOTAL:         681.95

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-027795 JT MUFFLER             I-201102245861       211 5355-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TRUCK #541 REPAIRS   106005         462.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-027795  TOTALS            462.50

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       211 5355-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017         241.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS            241.20

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 355   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:         703.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-046900 WEST & COMPANY LLC     I-161880             211 5356-513        AUDITING SERV: AUDITING SERVICES    106020      10,875.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-046900  TOTALS         10,875.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 356   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:      10,875.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 211   WATER FUND               TOTAL:      14,061.65



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 342  SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001199 CARTER WATERS          I-30000456           212 5342-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BLADES               105992         332.96

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001199  TOTALS            332.96

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25173             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: FLASHER              105991          37.47

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25214             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LIGHT ASSEMBLY,BULB  105991          40.93

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P25815             212 5342-434        REPAIR OF VEH: AIR FILTERS,BULBS    105991          45.58

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS            123.98

 

01-006780 CLARK DIETZ INC        I-408071             212 5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS : CSO FLOW MONITORING  105995       6,328.19

01-006780 CLARK DIETZ INC        I-408072             212 5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS : LONG TERM CONTROL PL 105995       6,817.91

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-006780  TOTALS         13,146.10

 

01-036810 CR NEFF PLUMBING, HEAT I-11583              212 5342-439        OTHER REPAIR : REPLACE EXISTING SEW 105999       5,069.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-036810  TOTALS          5,069.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 342   SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM  TOTAL:      18,672.04

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235830       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: BUXTON CENTRE        105997          77.64

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235831       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: GOLDEN VALLEY LIFT S 105997         356.83

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235832       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: SBLHC LIFT STA       105997         230.79

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235833       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: LLC LIFT STA         105997         129.28

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS            794.54

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 343   SEWER LIFT STATIONS      TOTAL:         794.54

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000337 CERTIFIED BALANCE &    I-19575              212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : CLEANING & CALIBRATI 105993         277.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000337  TOTALS            277.00

 

01-001043 MIDWEST GAS INSTRUMENT I-22078              212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : CALIBRATE IMPACT     106007          65.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001043  TOTALS             65.00

 



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001166 QUALITY CHEMICAL COMPA I-6874               212 5344-314        CHEMICALS    : QUALITY CHEMICAL COM 106011         569.48

01-001166 QUALITY CHEMICAL COMPA I-7028               212 5344-314        CHEMICALS    : QUALITY CHEMICAL COM 106011         460.10

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001166  TOTALS          1,029.58

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B41216             212 5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: COFFEE,CLAMP,RAGS    105947          66.30

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-B43980             212 5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: SPREADER,PUREX       105947          36.52

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS            102.82

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-28512              212 5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      105948         105.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS            105.75

 

01-045505 VANDEVANTER ENGINEERIN I-1222194            212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: VANDEVANTER ENGINEER 106018       8,090.48

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045505  TOTALS          8,090.48

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 344   WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANTTOTAL:       9,670.63

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-027795 JT MUFFLER             I-201102245861       212 5345-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TRUCK #541 REPAIRS   106005         462.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-027795  TOTALS            462.50

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201102235857       212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 106017         241.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS            241.20

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 345   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:         703.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-046900 WEST & COMPANY LLC     I-161880             212 5346-513        AUDITING SERV: AUDITING SERVICES    106020      10,875.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-046900  TOTALS         10,875.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 346   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:      10,875.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 212   SEWER FUND               TOTAL:      40,715.91

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      78,569.05



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    15

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2010-2011 110-5120-531        POSTAGE                           346.31       2,250       1,355.29

          110-5150-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    14.93       2,000       1,044.15

          110-5160-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                     1.32         250         140.30

          110-5160-515        LABOR RELATIONS COUNSEL         7,871.85      15,000      11,649.94-  Y

          110-5180-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        270.00       2,500       2,230.00

          110-5180-531        POSTAGE                            13.20         150         105.17

          110-5212-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         50.00       1,400         368.92-  Y

          110-5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      15.98       2,500       1,519.28

          110-5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             57.40       1,500         568.42-  Y

          110-5224-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  280.23       2,200         246.70

          110-5241-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES           6.79       8,000       1,994.92

          110-5241-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               405.57       5,050       2,278.82

          110-5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      29.87       7,200         796.79

          110-5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            251.49       4,000       1,625.42

          110-5241-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            333.17      10,000       4,323.65

          110-5241-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                48.60       8,800       6,712.63

          110-5241-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               162.00      11,300       3,418.62

          110-5241-531        POSTAGE                             9.25         500         334.41

          110-5241-532        TELEPHONE                          38.80       4,280         951.22

          110-5241-578        AMBULANCE BILLING EXPENSES        625.00       1,200       3,325.00-  Y

          110-5261-531        POSTAGE                            37.38         400         195.42

          110-5261-532        TELEPHONE                         239.31       3,000         794.73

          110-5261-577        DEMOLITION SERVICES               287.89      15,000       5,115.42-  Y

          110-5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   529.74         600       3,073.59-  Y

          110-5320-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    40.57       1,000          21.67-  Y

          110-5320-316        TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT               332.96       4,000         930.17

          110-5320-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   82.36         800         270.15

          110-5320-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               225.03      15,000       2,050.99

          110-5320-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                504.21       7,000         663.63-  Y

          110-5320-531        POSTAGE                            46.64         300         229.17

          110-5335-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            475.00         100         852.39-  Y

          110-5335-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   26.02         300          41.40

          110-5383-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   26.28         400         169.49

          110-5384-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         112.24           0       1,035.88-  Y

          110-5505-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        650.00       5,000         335.56

          110-5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               4,800.00       6,000       1,310.51-  Y

          110-5511-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,270.52      10,000         461.41

          110-5521-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   34.76         500         213.33-  Y

          110-5541-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   80.59       8,000       6,250.87-  Y

          110-5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             21.88       2,500         149.37-  Y

          110-5551-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         37.68       4,000         484.42

          110-5552-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         53.49       4,000         398.12

          110-5553-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        155.39       3,000         812.13-  Y

          110-5556-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             30.68       1,000         435.96-  Y

          110-5562-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          33.98         100          66.02

          110-5563-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   213.50         200          56.27-  Y

          110-5570-321        UTILITIES                         342.32       6,000         565.25



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    16

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          122-5653-513        AUDITING SERVICES               1,100.00       1,100           0.00

          122-5653-531        POSTAGE                             9.55         500         432.91

          122-5653-540        ADVERTISING                        20.00      15,000       7,308.00

          122-5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  38.00       8,500       5,895.71

          123-5586-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              1.76       1,000         759.07

          128-5604-513        AUDITING SERVICES               1,100.00       1,100           0.00

          211-5353-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                   1.29         500         177.38-  Y

          211-5353-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      22.04         200          64.42

          211-5353-378        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR                19.04       2,000          72.29-  Y

          211-5353-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      1,758.63     400,000     332,067.27

          211-5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 332.96       2,000       1,380.50-  Y

          211-5354-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                78.41      10,000       5,539.00

          211-5354-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 45.58       5,000         979.84

          211-5354-440        RENTALS                           225.00       2,000         992.10

          211-5355-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                462.50           0         462.50-  Y

          211-5355-531        POSTAGE                           241.20      15,000       5,590.45

          211-5356-513        AUDITING SERVICES              10,875.00      14,500       3,625.00

          212-5342-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 332.96       1,500       1,224.79-  Y

          212-5342-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                78.40       5,000         920.15-  Y

          212-5342-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 45.58       2,500       2,559.80-  Y

          212-5342-439        OTHER REPAIR & MTCE SERVIC      5,069.00      15,000       2,112.22

          212-5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     13,146.10     300,000     245,780.99

          212-5343-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES-MOULTRI        794.54       7,000       1,987.18

          212-5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   208.57       2,500       1,288.26

          212-5344-314        CHEMICALS                       1,029.58      13,000       7,907.49

          212-5344-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             8,090.48      40,000      11,895.75

          212-5344-439        OTHER REPAIR & MNTCE SERVI        342.00      25,000       1,167.85

          212-5345-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                462.50           0         462.50-  Y

          212-5345-531        POSTAGE                           241.20      16,000       3,781.84

          212-5346-513        AUDITING SERVICES              10,875.00      14,500       3,625.00

                                TOTAL:                       78,569.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-120                 CITY CLERK                                          346.31

                    110-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                             14.93

                    110-160                 LEGAL SERVICES                                    7,873.17

                    110-180                 PLANNING & ZONING                                   283.20

                    110-212                 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION                               50.00

                    110-223                 AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                                  73.38

                    110-224                 POLICE BUILDINGS                                    280.23

                    110-241                 FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.                            1,910.54



 2/25/2011  8:32 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    17

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-261                 CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN                              564.58

                    110-310                 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                                  529.74

                    110-320                 STREETS                                           1,231.77

                    110-335                 YARD WASTE COLLECTION                               501.02

                    110-383                 BURGESS OSBORNE                                      26.28

                    110-384                 RAILROAD DEPOT                                      112.24

                    110-505                 ARTS COUNCIL                                        650.00

                    110-511                 PARK ADMINISTRATION                               6,070.52

                    110-521                 DEMARS CENTER                                        34.76

                    110-541                 PETERSON PARK                                        80.59

                    110-542                 LAWSON PARK                                          21.88

                    110-551                 BOYS COMPLEX                                         37.68

                    110-552                 GIRLS COMPLEX                                        53.49

                    110-553                 JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX                                 155.39

                    110-556                 T-BALL COMPLEX                                       30.68

                    110-562                 WEST CAMPGROUND                                      33.98

                    110-563                 MARINA AREA                                         213.50

                    110-570                 DODGE GROVE CEMETERY                                342.32

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                     21,522.18

                    122-653                 HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION                          1,167.55

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    122  TOTAL              HOTEL TAX FUND                                    1,167.55

                    123-586                 LIGHTWORKS                                            1.76

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    123  TOTAL              FESTIVAL MGMT FUND                                    1.76

                    128-604                 MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT                              1,100.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    128  TOTAL              MIDTOWN TIF FUND                                  1,100.00

                    211-353                 WATER TREATMENT PLANT                             1,801.00

                    211-354                 WATER DISTRIBUTION                                  681.95

                    211-355                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                             703.70

                    211-356                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                         10,875.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    211  TOTAL              WATER FUND                                       14,061.65

                    212-342                 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM                          18,672.04

                    212-343                 SEWER LIFT STATIONS                                 794.54

                    212-344                 WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT                         9,670.63

                    212-345                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                             703.70

                    212-346                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                         10,875.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    212  TOTAL              SEWER FUND                                       40,715.91

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      78,569.05

    NO ERRORS



 2/25/2011  8:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: EHBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 411  STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-201102235851       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS AGGREGATE  106022       1,165.30

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-201102235851       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS SPECIFIC   106022      14,797.63

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000221  TOTALS         15,962.93

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 411   STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE   TOTAL:      15,962.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-201102235851       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: ADMIN FEES           106022       9,961.96

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000221  TOTALS          9,961.96

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:       9,961.96

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201102175824       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PERSONAL CARE        000000      31,195.94

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201102245863       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PERSONAL CARE        000000      57,933.14

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000236  TOTALS         89,129.08

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 413   MEDICAL CLAIMS           TOTAL:      89,129.08

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201102175824       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : PERSONAL CARE        000000      13,183.70

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201102245863       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : PERSONAL CARE        000000      10,049.38

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000236  TOTALS         23,233.08

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 414   RX CLAIMS                TOTAL:      23,233.08

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001982 FORT DEARBORN LIFE INS I-201102245862       221 5417-212        LIFE INSURANC: MARCH LIFE INS       106021       2,237.29

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001982  TOTALS          2,237.29

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 417   LIFE INSURANCE           TOTAL:       2,237.29

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:     140,524.34

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     140,524.34



 2/25/2011  8:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2010-2011 221-5411-211        STOP LOSS INSURANCE            15,962.93     160,000      11,308.92

          221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION      9,961.96     145,000      34,652.21

          221-5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIMS                 89,129.08   1,407,139      87,654.79

          221-5414-211        RX CLAIMS                      23,233.08     525,000      61,755.11

          221-5417-212        LIFE INSURANCE                  2,237.29      32,500      10,175.21

                                TOTAL:                      140,524.34

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-411                 STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE                           15,962.93

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                 9,961.96

                    221-413                 MEDICAL CLAIMS                                   89,129.08

                    221-414                 RX CLAIMS                                        23,233.08

                    221-417                 LIFE INSURANCE                                    2,237.29

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                           140,524.34

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     140,524.34

    NO ERRORS



 2/25/2011  8:35 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: DDBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 412  HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-201102235855       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,187.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000276  TOTALS          1,187.24

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:       1,187.24

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-201102165811       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       2,184.70

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-201102235855       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       2,982.70

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000276  TOTALS          5,167.40

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 415   DENTAL CLAIMS            TOTAL:       5,167.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:       6,354.64

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       6,354.64



 2/25/2011  8:35 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2010-2011 221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION      1,187.24     145,000      34,652.21

          221-5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS                   5,167.40     100,000      31,732.58

                                TOTAL:                        6,354.64

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                 1,187.24

                    221-415                 DENTAL CLAIMS                                     5,167.40

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                             6,354.64

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       6,354.64

    NO ERRORS



 2/25/2011  8:38 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: MFTBK

FUND      : 121  MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 326  STREET LIGHTING

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      2/16/2011 THRU  2/28/2011

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235840       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: PIATT & RT 316       106024          13.20

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235841       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: 3020 LAKELAND BLVD   106024           8.32

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235842       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45 & PARADISE   106024          14.83

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235843       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45 & PARADISE   106024          14.83

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235844       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: LAKELAND INN ENTRANC 106024           8.70

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235845       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: OLD STATE VILLAGE    106024           9.82

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235846       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: SOUTH 9TH ST         106024           8.70

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235847       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: SUNRISE APTS         106024           9.82

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235848       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45              106024          67.23

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235849       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: EAST RT 16           106024         131.27

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201102235850       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45 & PARADISE   106024          47.53

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS            334.25

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 326   STREET LIGHTING          TOTAL:         334.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 121   MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND      TOTAL:         334.25

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:         334.25



 2/25/2011  8:38 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2010-2011 121-5326-322        ELECTRIC (COLES MOULTRIE)         334.25       4,000       1,238.90

                                TOTAL:                          334.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    121-326                 STREET LIGHTING                                     334.25

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    121  TOTAL              MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                                 334.25

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                         334.25

    NO ERRORS



 2-18-2011  2:12 PM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 19894 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  2/18/2011

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-16500-07     ROMACK, JOHN                2/18/11 FINAL BILL    105950        42.27CR  100 32289          60.00CR

21-22700-04     RITTER, RACHAL L            2/18/11 FINAL BILL    105951        20.73CR  100 35369          60.00CR

26-09900-09     POLTROCK, KENNETH G         2/18/11 FINAL BILL    105952        15.76CR  100 34519          60.00CR



 2-18-2011  2:12 PM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    2

Packet: 19894 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  2/18/2011

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

TOTAL REFUNDS:        3

       AMOUNT:         78.76CR

====================================================================================================================================

     ACCOUNT             SOURCE NAME                                     AMOUNT

     211-1111                   METER DEPOSIT CASH                        42.27CR

     211-1111                   METER DEPOSIT CASH                        20.73CR

     211-1111                   METER DEPOSIT CASH                        15.76CR

     211-1133                   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - CUSTOMER            78.76

ERRORS:      0

** END OF REPORT **



 

                      

NEW BUSINESS: 
City of Mattoon 

Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 03/01/11 CDR NO: 2011-1184  SUBJECT:  Traffic Signal Agreement 
 

SUBMITTAL DATE:  02/22/11 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Dean Barber 
 
APPROVED By:   Sue McLaughlin,      
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator  ___02/24/2011__________ 
      Date 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Intergovernmental Agreement 
  

EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$ N/A $ N/A $ N/A $ N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
 I move to authorize the Acting Mayor to sign the Traffic Signal Master Agreement 
 between the City of Mattoon and the Illinois Department of Transportation.  
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Signing of this agreement will enter us into a 10-year continuation agreement with IDOT for 
maintenance and electricity associated with the Traffic Signals located on the State routes 
throughout the City.   The existing agreement is due to expire June 30, 2011. 





























 

                      

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2011-1427 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS REAL ESTATE OWNED 

BY THE MUNICIPALITY TO THE BROADWAY CHRISTIAN CHURCH 

 

WHEREAS, state statute (65 ILCS 5/11-76-4.1) enables the corporate authorities to accept any 
contract proposal determined by them to be in the best interest of the municipality by a vote of 
two-thirds of the corporate authorities then holding office, but in no event at a price less than 
80% of the appraised value; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property being sold is described in the plat of survey, which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes a finding that the real estate owned by the 
municipality that is the subject of this ordinance is no longer necessary or required for the use of 
the municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, this property is the site of the old lime pits for the former water treatment plant, the 
kickapoo creek runs through he middle of the property and there are various buried water and 
sewer lines that make the property virtually unusable; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Broadway Christian Church has already paid approximately $1,800.00 to have 
a phase I environmental review performed on the property; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Broadway Christian Church has made an offer to purchase the property for 
$4,480.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Broadway Christian Church owns property adjacent to this property; and   
 
WHEREAS, Robert D. Becker of Corrie Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. determined $5,600.00 
was the fair market value of the real estate as of December 23, 2011 and the fee for the appraisal 
is $500.00.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 

MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 2. The City Attorney is authorized to prepare closing documents and the Acting Mayor 
and City Clerk are authorized to sign documents conveying a Warranty Deed to the real estate 
described in Section 3 of this ordinance to the Broadway Christian Church subject to a payment 
in the amount of $4,480.00 and the payment of all fees and costs associated with this sale. 
 

Section 3. The real estate to be conveyed pursuant to this ordinance is legally described as: 
 

A part of the West Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 24, Township 12 
North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian, more particularly described 
as follows: 

 



 

                      

Commencing at a stone at the North Quarter corner of Section 24, Township 12 
North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian; thence on an assumed 
azimuth 180 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds along the west line of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 24, 1204.20 feet to a concrete monument being the Point 
of Beginning; thence azimuth 83 degrees 49 minutes 54 seconds, 405.07 feet to an 
iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 189 degrees 58 minutes 39 seconds, 
596.42 feet to a concrete monument on the north line of Jefferson Addition 
Subdivision; thence azimuth 269 degrees 09 minutes 54 seconds, 100.54 feet to an 
iron pin at the Northwest corner of said Jefferson Addition Subdivision; thence 
azimuth 180 degrees 19 minutes 51 seconds, 29.49 feet to an iron pin on the north 
right of way line of the former P.D. & E. Railroad; thence azimuth 306 degrees 02 
minutes 44 seconds along the said north right of way line, 373.84 feet to an iron 
pin with cap #3140 on the west line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 24; 
thence azimuth 0 degrees 00 minutes 000 seconds, 363.87 feet along the said west 
line to the Point of Beginning, containing 4.768 acres more or less, all situated in 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois 

 

Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of ___________________, 2011, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this           day of     , 2011.  
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Timothy D. Gover, Acting Mayor   
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2011. 
  





























































 

                      

   ---------------------------------------------------------- 

     Nothing follows 


	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 1, 2011
	Unapproved Minutes - February 22, 2011 (Rescheduled)
	Bills & Payroll - last half of February
	Council Decision Request 2011-1184 IDOT Traffic Signal Agreement
	SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2011-1427 Surplus Real Estate & Sale to Broadway Christian Church



